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of this part is to set forth the require-
ments regarding the reasonable time
and the manner of correction for a per-
son seeking safe harbor protection
from criminal liability under 49 U.S.C.
30170(a).

[656 FR 81418, Dec. 26, 2000]

§578.3 Applicability.

This part applies to civil penalties
for violations of Chapters 301, 305, 323,
325, 327, 329, and 331 of Title 49 of the
United States Code. This part also ap-
plies to the criminal penalty safe har-
bor provision of section 30170 of Title 49
of the United States Code.

[656 FR 81419, Dec. 26, 2000]

§578.4 Definitions.

All terms used in this part that are
defined in sections 30102, 30501, 32101,
32702, 32901, and 33101 of Title 49 of the
United States Code are used as defined
in the appropriate statute.

Administrator means the Adminis-
trator of the National Highway Traffic
Safety Administration.

Civil penalty means any non-criminal
penalty, fine, or other sanction that:

(1) Is for a specific monetary amount
as provided by Federal law, or has a
maximum amount provided for by Fed-
eral law; and

(2) Is assessed, compromised, col-
lected, or enforced by NHTSA pursuant
to Federal law.

NHTSA means the National Highway
Traffic Safety Administration.

[62 FR 5169, Feb. 4, 1997, as amended at 656 FR
81419, Dec. 26, 2000]

§578.5 Inflationary adjustment of civil
penalties.

The civil penalties set forth in this
part continue in effect until adjusted
by the Administrator. At least once
every four years, the Administrator
shall review the amount of these civil
penalties and will, if appropriate, ad-
just them by rule.

§578.6 Civil penalties for violations of
specified provisions of Title 49 of
the United States Code.

(a)(1) Motor wvehicle safety. A person
who violates any of sections 30112,
30115, 30117 through 30122, 30123(d),
30125(c), 30127, or 30141 through 30147 of

§578.6

Title 49 of the United States Code or a
regulation prescribed under any of
those sections is liable to the United
States Government for a civil penalty
of not more than $5,000 for each viola-
tion. A separate violation occurs for
each motor vehicle or item of motor
vehicle equipment and for each failure
or refusal to allow or perform an act
required by any of those sections. The
maximum civil penalty under this
paragraph for a related series of viola-
tions is $15,000,000.

(2) Section 30166. A person who vio-
lates section 30166 of Title 49 of the
United States Code or a regulation pre-
scribed under that section is liable to
the United States Government for a
civil penalty for failing or refusing to
allow or perform an act required under
that section or regulation. The max-
imum penalty under this paragraph is
$5,000 per violation per day. The max-
imum penalty under this paragraph for
a related series of daily violations is
$15,000,000.

(b) National Automobile Title Informa-
tion System. An individual or entity vio-
lating 49 U.S.C. Chapter 305 is liable to
the United States Government for a
civil penalty of not more than $1,100 for
each violation.

(c) Bumper standards. (1) A person
that violates 49 U.S.C. §32506(a) is lia-
ble to the United States Government
for a civil penalty of not more than
$1,100 for each violation. A separate
violation occurs for each passenger
motor vehicle or item of passenger
motor vehicle equipment involved in a
violation of 49 U.S.C. 32506(a)(1) or (4)—

(i) That does not comply with a
standard prescribed under 49 U.S.C.
32502, or

(ii) For which a certificate is not pro-
vided, or for which a false or mis-
leading certificate is provided, under 49
U.S.C. 32504.

(2) The maximum civil penalty under
this paragraph (c) for a related series of
violations is $925,000.

(d) Consumer information regarding
crashworthiness and damage suscepti-
bility. A person that violates 49 U.S.C.
32308(a) is liable to the United States
Government for a civil penalty of not
more than $1,100 for each violation.
Each failure to provide information or
comply with a regulation in violation
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